CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 7, 2023

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, February 7, 2023, to order at 7:00 p.m.
Present were Councilors MaryAnn Hallstein, Thomas Dierberger, Mike Amery, and Greg Zgutowicz.
Also present were City Administrator Jennifer Nash, City Engineer Jenn Edison and Accountant Jackie
Heinz. Guests present were Wright County Sheriff’s Deputy Kotaska, Jason Doboszenski, Gretchen
Barrett, Jim Zajicek, Chad Caddy, Kevin Vikingson, Missy Thompson and Rob Scriver.

Approval of Agenda:

Nash noted a requested additional item was handed out - 7d — Out of State Conference.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried
unanimously.

Consent Agenda:
Amery removed item 3d - Resolution 02-07-23-12 — Approving Amendment to Extend CRHW 6™
Agreement for discussion.
MOTION by Amery to approve the amended consent agenda, seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried
unanimously.

a. Approve Minutes of January 17, 2023 City Council Work Session Meeting

b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 93,628.00
> Payroll $ 10,618.60
> P/R taxes & Exp $  4,264.50
» Other Claims $ 3.030.02

» Total Claims $ 111.541.18
¢. Resolution 02-07-23-11 — Approving Renewal of Consumption and Display Permit
Motion carried unanimously.

Resolution 02-07-23-12 — Approving Amendment to Extend CRHW 6™ Agreement
Amery inquired why they are requesting to extend and is this normal. Nash stated this is common, the
developer was doing site work and was not able to finish before winter set in and so extending.

MOTION by Amery to approve Resolution 02-07-23-12, seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried
unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
Missy Thompson — Hanover Youth Ball

Thompson stated she is a 15 year resident of Hanover, 11 of those years she has been on the Hanover
Youth Ball Board. Thompson thanked council for allowing HYB to use the fields and the park, thanked
Jason Doboszenski for everything public works does and thanked council for donating and moving the
shed. Thompson stated they are seeing tremendous growth, from 300 last year to 350 this year, they
offer travel and rec leagues for multiple ages, and the organization is ran by 13 board members. She
reviewed a schedule handed out highlighting when the group uses City fields. Kauffman thanked
Thompson for coming and noted it is nice that the fields are getting used. He also noted the City is



seeing increased use of facilities and requests for staff assistance, so Council will be interested in learning
more about how our relationships with various organizations work to potentially look to formalize
understanding in the future.

Hallstein inquired about a concern about foul balls going over a fence near the playground. Kauffman
suggested Youth Ball could coordinate what they believe a good fix would be and reach out to the
Hanover Athletic Association to see if they may be willing to fund.

Kevin Vikingson — 10486 6™ Street

Vikingson stated he is here as a resident, but also works for Hennepin County and collects numbers on
traffic. He wanted to attend the meeting to suggest that citizens call Hennepin County Public Works at
612-596-0299 with any concerns regarding Hennepin County roads such as recent social media
comments about the 117/19 intersection. More comments will help Hennepin to understand and work
to address issues. Kauffman inquired if safety is a priority over counts, Vikingson stated yes, the
complaints regarding safety are important as just counts may not warrant this project moving ahead of
others for funding in the County.

Chad Caddy stated the city already has the numbers and inquired why the city hasn’t been on top of this
issue. Amery stated this intersection has been and continues to be a tremendous priority. 117/ 19 is a
dangerous intersection. He thanked Vikingson for attending to try to help and to relay that Hennepin is
talking about it. Kauffman noted there is a concept, but no funds. Caddy asked why snow on the
sidewalk on the bridge hadn’t been cleared quickly. Doboszenski noted the sidewalk on the bridge in
maintained by the county, we ask for permission to clear it. Nash stated Hennepin County owns the
bridge sidewalk, the city asked to clear and this is one of the items done within the schedule.
Doboszenski relayed clearing snow on this section of sidewalk was challenging this year due to snow
fall patterns and snowmobilers compacting. Hennepin County eventually came out with a 7 man crew
to clean it up. Hallstein stated the bridge is uniquely challenging, the snow must be hauled away.

Chad Caddy - 532 Emmy Lane

Caddy inquired why there are ordinances if they aren’t followed. He is concerned that issues he has
reported regarding his neighbors remain unresolved, and he does not feel residents should need to contact
the City or Sheriff’s Office when there are issues. Nash stated Wright County Sheriff’s office is starting
to help with some code enforcement through the City’s contract with them for law enforcement. Many
communities with contracts with County law enforcement have developed this relationship. The city
works on a complaint basis and the Sheriff’s Office was called out multiple times to work with Caddy’s
neighbors regarding the concerns. Amery noted the City pays about $200k per year for law enforcement
services, so assistance with enforcing the City’s laws makes sense. Nash relayed that this assistance
from the County enforcement services is still early here in Hanover and hasn’t been utilized in the past.
As the process is developed and better refined, the City can also work to provide communication to
residents on which complaints can be directed where to receive assistance.

Public Hearing
None

Unfinished Business
None



New Business
Resolution 02-07-23-13 — Approving 2023 Street Project Professional Services

Edison presented analysis of core samples of the Bridges neighborhood as well as Esterly Oaks and
Rolling Oaks. She stated coring was done back in November and we looked at maintenance versus
reconstruct. Coring showed Bridges will unfortunately not be recommended for mill and overlay and
will instead need a larger project in the future. She noted recommendation to bid for Esterly Oaks and
Rolling Oaks areas for a full depth reclamation project. Rolling Oaks is a priority and Esterly Oaks
could be included as a bid alternate to allow for unknown price environment. There is nothing wasted
if the bid alternate isn’t done as design will be ready for future bidding.

Kauffman inquired how much was in the streets fund, Heinz stated $980k in streets capital currently.
Nash clarified that the Capital Improvement Plan has a total of $820k budgeted for all road projects this
year.

Dierberger asked Edison to explain the 180 hours of design. Edison stated there is over 1 mile of
roadway to this project and requires a 100-sheet plan set, WSB came in $40k under last year on design
and the project was only 3,000 feet. Edison stated they want to make sure there are no settlements, has
learned in the past to double check. Don’t want change orders and don’t want to come back for more
money.

MOTION by Amery to approve Resolution 02-07-23-13, seconded by Hallstein. Motion carried
unanimously.

Wastewater Discussion

Nash noted St. Michael is going through the process to expand the wastewater plant. Hanover contracts
with St. Michael for all wastewater, therefore we will have a share of the costs. St. Michael is applying
for grants and going to legislation, they have also decided to use all the ARPA funds to buy down future
debt and are asking if Hanover will do the same. Nash stated water and wastewater treatment are
expensive projects. St. Michael will do the bonding and there will be an analysis on how to repay that
debt over time through fees for services. Paying down some of the debt up front can prevent need for
higher increases to user fees to pay for debt. If Hanover had to start our own system, the up front capital
would be much more expensive. Edison noted she only has rough number so far from St. Michael staff
and is inquiring for further detail on costs and Hanover’s share.

Council members requested staff work with St. Michael to get more information about the plant and
Hanover’s share of costs for needed improvements. Nash stated St. Michael will be doing a rate study
and it would be a good idea for Hanover to do one as well to ensure fees meet operational and projected
capital costs for the water and sewer utilities.

Nash also relayed that some clarification should be considered with the contract with St. Michael that
dates back to 1998. We will want to make sure the language matches with how the City is planning for
the future for continued growth. This will be a topic of conversation with St. Michael in the future.
Review will include whether Hanover’s plans are matched in our agreements for water and wastewater
for the future growth areas.



County Road 19 Project Discussion
Nash stated there has been some communication with Wright County since the public input opportunity.
She noted the agreement with the County from 2021 includes delivery of plans designed to 95%. There
is another provision in the contract that allows the City to decide whether or not to move forward with
bidding the project. Wright County needs to know whether the current concept is ready to move forward
with remaining design work, or if there are changes the City would like to see within that remaining
design work.
Nash also relayed that Wright County staff have introduced the idea of helping to front funds to improve
the Hennepin County 123 / 19 intersection with Hanover paying back over time. Hallstein inquired if
council has more detail to look at for the design piece and spoke about pedestrian crossings at 34 and a
desire for a trail on the west side of 19 from Beebe Lake Road to 4™ St. Amery agreed he would like to
see this trail on west side of 19.
Edison stated Hennepin County is verbally in support of a roundabout at 123 and 19. Hallstein inquired
what else is needed for feedback. Nash stated the Council will need to decide on any feedback they want
to give on the overall concept as engineering work proceeds. Later on, the City will need to decide if
the project moves forward to bid.

Council members discussed design items that they would like included as remaining questions as design
moves forward. Edison stated she is working with the administrator to assemble a list of remaining
questions based on the most recent input opportunity and Council discussion. Nash stated if there is
more Council wants added, those could be included with a resolution for consideration at an upcoming
meeting. Hallstein inquired if tonight it just design, Nash stated at an upcoming meeting Council could
approve the concept noting all the listed items. Dierberger inquired how much more we know about the
funding with Wright County for 123, Edison noted this was a recent offer that still needs to be reviewed
and discussed. Hallstein stated this could be a discussion for the EDA if we want to look at it.

Zajicek inquired if Wright County would help with the costs for the Hennepin County intersection, Nash
stated they suggested they may be able to front the costs but this would need to be repaid. Edison noted
ongoing concerns with both 123 /19 and 117 / 19 Hennepin County intersections. 117/ 19 has been the
largest immediate safety concerns. Zajicek inquired if there is anything legally that the city use to force
Hennepin County to fix intersections. Attorney Squires stated the city could try, but there’s not much
leverage.

Discussion continued regarding contract language with Wright County. Squires stated he will relook at
the contract to clarify. Squires further stated back in 2021 it was important to the council to have that
pull the plug opportunity.

Out of State Conference
Nash stated there is a proposal for an out of state conference, justification is on the front with a budget
on the back of information handed out to Council. The March conference won’t work due to timing and
calendars. Kauffman stated there has been no out of stated travel since he came on council, this was
discussed earlier during Heinz’s review, one of her goals is to become a certified clerk and get more
training in the clerk area. He has concerns about being gone two weeks in May. Hallstein inquired if it
is a staffing concern, or a concern if something comes up. Kauffman stated when someone misses half
a month it’s a strain on the rest of staff. Hallstein inquired about the National conference and what type
of topics interest Heinz. Heinz stated she has been watching and they haven’t come out with the speakers



or break out sessions yet. Heinz further stated she would only be missing three days of work for the
National Conference in Portland, Oregon, Monday through Wednesday. Hallstein inquired if Heinz has
concerns about getting the May work load completed. Heinz stated no, audit will be completed the
second week of April, all annual reporting is done by May and it’s an easier, more manageable time of
work. Kauffman inquired when a decision should be made, Heinz stated the sooner the better for travel.
Heinz further stated she has applied for the two grants and based off the extra that wasn’t used last year
in the travel expenses and the accounting training budget, cost would be $929 dollars over budget, and
then since Amy hasn’t used her budget of $500 in six years, Heinz could use that and cost would be
$429. Dierberger stated it sounds like work would be covered and would be valuable. Heinz stated she
had the president of the MNGFOA reach out to her to attend, he was also her mentor through the
MNGFOA, and he helped her with a lot of spreadsheets she uses now, gave her insight and a lot of help.
Hallstein stated a well-trained staff is important.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve Heinz to attend the out of state conference, seconded by Dierberger.
Motion carried unanimously.

Reports
None

Adjournment
MOTION by Hallstein to adjourn at 9:31 p.m., seconded by Amery. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jennifer Nash, City Administrator



